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          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON: Good morning. My

          3  name is Michael McMahon, I'm the Chairman of the

          4  Sanitation and Solid Waste Committee of the New York

          5  City Council.

          6                 Before we proceed, let me just

          7  apologize to the Commissioner and his staff and to

          8  all those in attendance for the delay.  As you know,

          9  the Mayor just announced his Executive Budget Plan,

         10  and given the severity of the City's fiscal crisis,

         11  that of course lasted a little bit longer than we

         12  had anticipated.  Accordingly, we are a little bit

         13  behind schedule and certainly, Commissioner, I

         14  realize that we've held you here and that you will

         15  give testimony and then you have urgent business to

         16  attend to, but that your Deputy Commissioners will

         17  stay to answer any questions, and we're very

         18  grateful for that.

         19                 This is a hearing of the Sanitation

         20  and Solid Waste Management Committee concerning

         21  Intros 381 and 407.  Both new bills deal with in

         22  sink food waste disposals.  Intro 381 provides for

         23  the mandatory installation of food waste disposals

         24  in residential dwellings in new or replacement

         25  kitchen sinks.  Intro 407 allows commercial food
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          2  establishments to install them.

          3                 Prior to 1977, food waste disposals

          4  were prohibited in our City except for a small

          5  number of areas that were served by a separate storm

          6  and sanitary sewers.  New York was the only major

          7  city to prevent their general use in residential

          8  dwellings.  In 1995, the Council passed legislation

          9  providing that a study be completed to evaluate the

         10  effect that legalizing the use of food waste

         11  disposals would have on our sewage treatment system.

         12    The study was completed in 1997 and the Department

         13  of Environmental Protection concluded "The

         14  prohibition of the introduction of food waste

         15  disposals in combined sewer areas should be lifted."

         16    Based on that recommendation, Local Law 71 of 1997

         17  was adopted, and that allows the use of food waste

         18  disposals in all residential units in New York.

         19                 Although there has always been some

         20  interest in the use of food disposal units for

         21  commercial establishments, there has been a great

         22  deal of interest generated since the announcement of

         23  the proposed alternative private carter collection

         24  rate of eight dollars per hundred pounds of trash in

         25  place of the current $12.20 per cubic yard.  This
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          2  new rate could cause a substantial increase in

          3  carting costs for most food producing businesses,

          4  especially small restaurants and food stores.

          5                 There are many sound reasons for

          6  promoting greater use of food waste disposals.

          7  Their use reduces waste tonnage, thereby reducing

          8  disposals costs and the amount of solid waste going

          9  to out of state landfills.  Their use reduces odors

         10  associated with stored trash in residences, and

         11  eliminates the food supply for rodents, thereby

         12  diminishing their presence.  However, large

         13  infusions of food waste into our sewage treatment

         14  system can have negative consequences.  Processing

         15  costs could increase the level of nitrogen in

         16  treated water discharged from our treatment plants

         17  already in violation of federal requirements.  Some

         18  plants could increase further, requiring a

         19  substantial allocation of funds to correct.

         20                 During heavy rainstorms, the biosolid

         21  waste generated by food waste disposals would be

         22  discharged directly into our waterways.  We will

         23  hear today from witnesses on both sides of the

         24  issue.  It is the Committee's intention to explore

         25  this issue in depth before any final determinations
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          2  are made.  We welcome as our first witness the

          3  Commissioner of the Department of Environmental

          4  Protection, the Honorable Christopher L. Ward, and

          5  again Commissioner, we extend our apologies for the

          6  delay.

          7                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Not a problem.

          8  Thank you very much, Councilman.  It's a pleasure to

          9  be here.  I'm joined this morning with Deputy

         10  Commissioner Doug Greeley and Al Lopez.  As you

         11  graciously indicated, I will deliver the testimony

         12  in brief, and then unfortunately I'm drawn to

         13  another appointment.  Both Deputy Commissioners will

         14  remain for any further questions you have.

         15                 I have written testimony that I will

         16  paraphrase and go through in brief, but will submit

         17  for the record.  You've given an excellent table

         18  setting for the public policy questions facing the

         19  City as it relates to solid waste costs, waste water

         20  treatment costs, and then the role that garbage

         21  grinders might play.  Let me start by saying the

         22  Administration opposes both mandating the

         23  installation of grinders in residences and

         24  authorizing installation for food service

         25  establishments.

                                                            8

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 The fundamental reason for our

          3  opposition is the higher cost of mitigating the

          4  impact of adding food waste to the waste water

          5  treatment system.  As compared with conventional

          6  solid waste management, disposing of food via the

          7  City's system of sewers and waste water treatment

          8  plant, is unfortunately a very costly way to manage

          9  food waste.  The simple reason why food waste

         10  creates high costs for DEP is that food waste is,

         11  with all other waste disposed of in our sewers,

         12  subject to costly treatment at one of our fourteen

         13  sewage treatment plants.  And I state emphatically,

         14  unless New York City is willing to begin a process

         15  of degrading its surrounding waters instead of

         16  improving them, the cost of treating food waste at

         17  our waste water treatment plants far exceeds and

         18  outweighs solid waste management costs.

         19                 For example, I am advised by my

         20  colleagues at the Department of Sanitation that the

         21  last waste composition study showed that

         22  approximately fifteen percent of the residential

         23  waste stream is food waste.  If one third of all New

         24  York City households installed and used a garbage

         25  disposal for 100% of their food waste, approximately
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          2  187,000 tons of food waste per year would be

          3  diverted to the sewer system.  So the annual process

          4  savings to the City of one third of all dwelling

          5  units installed and used disposals would be in the

          6  range of about $13 million, or less than one percent

          7  of sanitation's Fiscal '04 expense budget.

          8                 Unfortunately, by comparison, if 33%

          9  of all residential units in the City had garbage

         10  disposals, the additional cost to DEP of treating

         11  that residential waste would be in the range of $30-

         12  40 million every year in expense costs, and in

         13  capital costs in the range of $300 million or more,

         14  and I will come back in my testimony to why the "or

         15  more" is important as it relates to water quality

         16  and nitrant loading within local water bodies.

         17                 My estimate of the additional

         18  treatment costs comes from the earlier study that

         19  you referenced in your introductory remarks.  Those

         20  numbers could easily underestimate the costs of

         21  treating high volumes of food waste at our treatment

         22  plants.  If we were doing that study today, we would

         23  generate new and probably highly costs because the

         24  nitrogen control technology at DEP facilities that

         25  were assumed in the earlier study are no longer
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          2  applicable.

          3                 I have testified in front of the

          4  Council on how the nitrogen reduction strategy from

          5  the Department of Environmental Protection's

          6  perspective has escalated to such a level that we

          7  are now proposing within our capital plan a

          8  reexamination of exactly how that nitrogen program

          9  would go forward, with the federal government and

         10  state DEC because, simply put, we can not afford to

         11  do all of the nitrogen reduction strategies that

         12  other regulatory agencies have asked us to do.

         13  Within that, however, waste water treatment upgrade

         14  and the nitrogen program over the next ten years

         15  will still remain around approximately $1.7 billion.

         16                 Although increased residential

         17  grinder use creates some impacts on water

         18  consumption and sewer maintenance, the primary

         19  reasons for the costs I just mentioned is the

         20  nitrogen content in food waste.  Nitrogen is a

         21  nutrient identified as a key factor leading to poor

         22  water quality in Western Long Island Sound and

         23  Jamaica Bay.  Nitrogen is present in the sanitary

         24  waste currently discharged in to our sewer system.

         25  It is also a component of food waste.  Although
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          2  excessive nitrogen loadings can impair water

          3  quality, they do not pose a threat to public health

          4  and were not considered a pollutant until fairly

          5  recently.  The conventional sewage treatment

          6  processes I just mentioned were therefore not

          7  designed and are not effective at removing nutrients

          8  such as nitrogen.  To do that, we need to spend a

          9  lot more money to upgrades our plants.

         10                 To improve the water quality in Long

         11  Island Sound and Jamaica Bay, New York State and the

         12  U.S. EPA have ordered the City to put in place this

         13  very intensive capital program of sewage treatment

         14  and intended to reduce the amount of nitrogen

         15  discharged into the upper East River and Jamaica

         16  Bay.

         17                 As I just indicated, our ten year

         18  plan now assumes a cost of approximately $400

         19  million for reducing nitrogen loading.  This is on

         20  top of the $1.3 billion that we are spending on

         21  waste water treatment upgrades.  That number is

         22  built on the City reducing it's daily nitrogen

         23  discharges from a baseline of 68,000 pounds per day

         24  to only 48,000 pounds per day.  If the baseline

         25  changes because residential food waste disposals are
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          2  mandated in some circumstances, the nitrogen

          3  loadings will only increase and so will the cost for

          4  removing nitrogen.

          5                 At very high rates of grinder

          6  installation, as the scenario I mentioned earlier,

          7  the incremental nitrogen costs are very high.  At

          8  low rates, the incremental nitrogen costs may be

          9  low, but they're not at this point quantifiable.

         10  But we do know they won't be zero.  If New Yorkers

         11  start throwing food waste down their kitchen

         12  disposals, DEP will have to treat that waste and the

         13  costs of operating our sewage treatments will simply

         14  increase.

         15                 The Council, in front of Councilman

         16  Gennaro, has also made clear, we will be in a very

         17  difficult negotiation position with our federal and

         18  state regulators in attempting to renegotiate those

         19  nitrogen mandates.  Our nitrogen program, if we were

         20  to go forward with it, would be upwards of $3

         21  billion.  We're proposed a substantial reduction,

         22  one that we think is thoughtful, one that balances

         23  water quality needs but at this point is one that is

         24  not fully funded at the levels that our regulators

         25  had expected.
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          2                 Up to now I have only referred to the

          3  costs for residential use of garbage grinders.

          4  Obviously, restaurants and cafeterias would have a

          5  financial interest in using them as well as opposed

          6  to paying a private carter.  Commercial carting

          7  costs are assumed by a single business or a single

          8  building owner.  Costs of the sewer system are not

          9  borne by a single business, they are borne by the

         10  830,000 property owners who pay their water and

         11  sewer bills. From the standpoint of a restaurant

         12  manager, and this is no disrespect to the industry

         13  or the restaurant manager, food waste disposal is

         14  not just a convenience, that it can reduce odors and

         15  vermin, a food waste disposal can actually save

         16  money, and if permitted to use grinders, a

         17  restaurant operator would have a strong financial

         18  incentive to use that disposal to the greatest

         19  extent possible.  We haven't had a whole lot of

         20  experience in the commercial side, but we have done

         21  a rough analysis.  Basically, if all 19,000, a

         22  rounded number, 19,000 restaurants in the City use

         23  grinders every day, they would generate about 6,000

         24  pounds of nitrogen per day.  We know that the

         25  current nitrogen control program will generate
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          2  capital costs as I said of around $400 million to

          3  remove 20,000 pounds of nitrogen by 2009.

          4                 If that same cost per pound applied

          5  to the extra 6,000 pounds added to our nitrogen

          6  baseline, then we are looking at an additional $120

          7  million in capital costs.  Again, just bear in mind,

          8  I'm not testifying that these are firms numbers.

          9  These are cost estimates based on previous studies,

         10  based on our nitrogen program, and an estimate of

         11  approximately how many restaurants would potentially

         12  convert to a grinding operation.

         13                 In terms of the efficacy of garbage

         14  grinders, clearly they will reduce solid waste

         15  costs.  But they impose on the waste water treatment

         16  facilities significant capital and operating costs.

         17  So far I've only spoken about how it affects our

         18  waste water treatment plants.  Nitrogen is not the

         19  only component of food waste that concerns DEP.

         20  Food waste is also rich in fats and oils that

         21  congeal on the interior of a sewer pipe and reduce

         22  the pipe's ability to flow.

         23                 In 1997, the DEP looked at sewer

         24  maintenance costs associated with authorizing

         25  garbage grinders in residences, and this indicated
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          2  that the high residential disposal installation

          3  would generate modest increase in sewer and

          4  maintenance costs. However, that study only looked

          5  at the residential side.  Allowing food

          6  establishments to use grinders could significantly

          7  impact our sewer maintenance costs as well.

          8                 Commissioner Greeley can answer a lot

          9  of these questions.  For us, it's clear linkage

         10  between food waste getting into the sewer systems,

         11  particularly from commercial establishments.  As

         12  this chart demonstrates, we have a significant

         13  grease enforcement program to stop catastrophic

         14  sewer backups.  The more types of food waste that we

         15  put into the sewer system, the more likely that we

         16  will see that type of a backup.  Again, Commissioner

         17  Greeley can answer that in greater detail.

         18                 The final impact from grinders that I

         19  need to disclose today relates to the fact that when

         20  a grinder is installed, on rainy days, some of that

         21  waste could, due to combined sewer overflow, flows

         22  untreated in our surrounding waters.  And I think

         23  everybody is familiar with the City's dual system of

         24  sanitary and sewage.  With this waste going into our

         25  sewer system, if we have a sewer overflow, this
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          2  material is going directly into our surrounding

          3  bodies of water, with the reduction in that quality

          4  of water, which has a long term health, long term

          5  economic impact for the City.  We are engaged right

          6  now in a massive combined sewer overflow program,

          7  spending approximately $700 million to improve and

          8  rebuild and actually expand that CSO program.  This

          9  addition of nutrient loading and additional material

         10  is only going to exacerbate the difficulty of

         11  bringing that program on time and since we can not

         12  build all CSOs that everybody would like to do, it's

         13  only going to further degrade local water bodies

         14  when there is a storm circumstance, and this food

         15  waste is then discharged directly into local water

         16  bodies.

         17                 Let me conclude by saying that DEP

         18  has worked well with the industry that is interested

         19  in bringing the efficiency of garbage grinders into

         20  residential units.  There is a pilot program that

         21  allows new implementation.  We don't believe

         22  mandating it for new construction makes sense.  It

         23  will expand radically.  We don't think that it makes

         24  sense within the commercial establishments, the cost

         25  effectiveness, and the cost avoidance is so strong a
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          2  financial incentive that just about everything will

          3  end up going down into the sewer system and then to

          4  our sewer treatment facilities.  We are under a

          5  consent decree for nitrogen reduction.  We are

          6  proposing a nitrogen reduction program which is

          7  vastly less than what the feds would want us to do.

          8  To add further nutrient loading, we are not going to

          9  be able to negotiate that reduced number.  We have

         10  been working closely with communities on sewage

         11  backup and how difficult that can be.  The oils and

         12  fats that congeal in sewer systems are directly

         13  related to the problems with backup.  And then last,

         14  we have a combined sewer system that discharges into

         15  local water bodies.  The cleaner we can keep that

         16  water when there is a storm surge is to the benefit

         17  of all New Yorkers and all communities.

         18                 So let me state on behalf of the

         19  Administration, we oppose mandating residential

         20  garbage grinders and we oppose commercial

         21  establishments using that as a cost effective way to

         22  deal with solid waste management.  I appreciate the

         23  time.  I went through that rather quickly and

         24  somewhat inarticulately, but I leave both Deputy

         25  Commissioners Greeley and Lopez to answer any
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          2  questions you may have.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you very

          4  much, Commissioner.  It was a pleasure to formally

          5  meet you here at the Sanitation Committee.

          6                 As you know, I am joined by my

          7  colleague James Gennaro who is a member of this

          8  Committee, and also is the Chairperson of the

          9  Environmental Protection Committee with which you

         10  have a much closer relationship.  I'm also joined by

         11  my colleague Andrew Lanza from Staten Island.  We

         12  thank you very much.

         13                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Thank you very

         14  much.  I apologize for having to leave.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  That's quite

         16  all right.  We apologize for messing up your

         17  schedule.  We appreciate your patience.  I think

         18  Council Member Gennaro would like to say something

         19  in furtherance of your remarks.  I don't know if you

         20  have time to listen.

         21                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Sure.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you,

         23  Commissioner. Thanks for coming down here on this

         24  very important and critical issue.  As many people

         25  know in this room, I was Policy Analyst for the
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          2  Environmental Protection Committee back in 1997.

          3  When we did the food waste disposal study, I had a

          4  lot of concerns back then and I certainly still have

          5  them now.

          6                 In light of hearing your recent good

          7  testimony at my capital budget hearing at which we

          8  went over in greater detail the intricate

          9  negotiations that we're going to have to be involved

         10  in with the federal government regarding getting

         11  them to back off a little bit in our nitrogen

         12  reduction program, and I can only imagine sitting

         13  across the table from the federal government and

         14  trying to explain to them how we still want to get

         15  let off the hook on nitrogen reduction while we're

         16  proposing simultaneously to release food wastes into

         17  the sewer system and at some point through CSO

         18  overflow directly into our local waters.

         19                 I think it would be a fair assessment

         20  that this would not be warmly greeted by the federal

         21  government and I think would kill our chances at

         22  doing what we believe is an appropriate nitrogen

         23  reduction.  My statement is that I share the same

         24  concerns that you do.  I've been involved in this

         25  issue for a real long time.  To the extent that
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          2  somebody's going to convince this Council and this

          3  Chairman of the need to do this.  It's going to be a

          4  heavy lift on their part to convince me that it

          5  would be worth the potentially hundreds of millions

          6  of dollars that the water rate of the City of New

          7  York would ultimately have to bear in providing this

          8  service to private industry.  As sympathetic as I am

          9  to businesses, my father ran a retail store for 40

         10  years and I understand what the cost of trying to

         11  make ends meet in a tough economy and doing

         12  business, my simple statement for the record, and I

         13  won't belabor it, is that I share your concerns.

         14  I'm pretty much on the same page with you and your

         15  good people Commissioner, so I thank you for your

         16  introduction here today of this issue to my

         17  colleagues.  We'll see where this goes in the end.

         18  I know you have another appointment.

         19                 COMMISSIONER WARD:  Thanks very much.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO: Thank you

         21  very much, Commissioner.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you for

         23  your insightful words, Council Member Gennaro.  As I

         24  said in my opening comments, the purpose of this

         25  hearing is just to view this aspect of solid waste
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          2  management, to see how we will make the connection,

          3  whether or not there is a way to help with the

          4  garbage crisis that we face, as well as the sewage

          5  system crisis that we face, and see if there's an

          6  interrelation that can be established or not, and

          7  certainly inform the Committee and the staff on

          8  these issues, I was going to say by flushing these

          9  issues out, but that may be an unfortunate use of

         10  phraseology.  I guess that joke must come up on

         11  occasion with your committee as well.  Having said

         12  that, we want to thank the Deputy Commissioners for

         13  remaining with us, and we'll ask a few questions, if

         14  we may.

         15                 On the residential side, can you just

         16  go over what the experience has been for the

         17  department since 1997 when the law was enacted that

         18  allowed residential use of food waste disposals?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  We'll try

         20  to answer the question in two pieces.  I'll talk a

         21  little bit about the installations.  The projections

         22  in the study were that installations would take

         23  place at a rate of one percent a year, so over a

         24  thirty year period it would be somewhere in the

         25  range of thirty percent of additions of garbage
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          2  grinders into the system. That hasn't happened.  In

          3  actuality, in the last five years, there's been a

          4  one percent penetration total, meaning about 30,000

          5  or so units have been installed throughout the City.

          6    In terms of the impacts, there are no impacts in

          7  terms of the sewage treatment process with that type

          8  of penetration with the 30,000 installed. In terms

          9  of adding costs to the process itself, the sewage

         10  treatment, cost of operations at that rate is not

         11  something that's measurable.  I'll let Commissioner

         12  Greeley talk about the sewer system.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Good

         14  morning Mr. Chair and Council Members.  My name is

         15  Doug Greeley, Deputy Commissioner, Water and Sewer

         16  Operations.  I'm trained like Pavlov trained his

         17  dogs.  Since 1997, in general, we have had a

         18  reduction in sewer backup complaints citywide from a

         19  high of something like 31,000 to presently in Fiscal

         20   '02, 19,000.  We did do a nine month task where we

         21  cleaned the sewers, we televised them, and then we

         22  looked at them periodically after the installation

         23  of garbage grinders.  We did see sedimentation

         24  start, but there was nothing really, based on the

         25  penetration, that was leaping out at us.  It was a
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          2  slow secretion into the sewers.  We didn't notice

          3  that they were unduly depositing material based on

          4  the length of time and the amount of garbage

          5  grinders at that time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you.

          7  Council Member Gennaro would like to say something.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  I have a

          9  hearing right next door where I'm sponsoring the

         10  bills that are being heard, so I have to go to that

         11  Committee hearing.  I've got to leave as quickly as

         12  I came.  My position is that I'm sorry I'm not going

         13  to be here all the time to hear all of the testimony

         14  from all sides, but I'm knowledgeable on the issue,

         15  have spoken to both sides who are coming forward on

         16  this, and also will continue to do that.  So my

         17  leaving now in no way indicates an end to my

         18  interest in this subject.  I'm interested in hearing

         19  from all parties and all sides as this progresses.

         20  I thank everyone for their indulgence.  I'm sorry

         21  that I have to leave.  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you,

         23  Council Member Gennaro.  And Deputy Commissioners

         24  Greeley and Lopez, thank you for staying with us.

         25  Let me just make sure that I understand what's been
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          2  said now.  On the residential side, is it that the

          3  introduction of the food waste disposals has been so

          4  minimally used that there has been no real impact on

          5  the system?  Is it also your belief that as long as

          6  the use stays at a minimum level, there should be no

          7  impact on the system?

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  That's

          9  correct, Councilman.  There has been very low marked

         10  penetration.  We have not noticed any problems

         11  arising based on that.  A couple of comments I'd

         12  like to make though, 70% of our sewer system is

         13  combined, where you have storm water and sanitary

         14  flowing in the same pipe.  These pipes are not

         15  designed to handle food waste efficiently.  What you

         16  would rely on constantly is a good rain storm to

         17  blow all of the sedimentation out of the pipes.  So

         18  the possibility exists that if we do go through an

         19  extended dry period, this material would excrete in

         20  the pipe and then harden up and in addition to

         21  causing sewer backups, would also affect street

         22  drainage.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Let's say one

         24  of the proposal out there now is that the City adopt

         25  a pay as you throw garbage system.  Certainly that
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          2  would spur the installation of food waste disposals

          3  throughout the City because people would figure out,

          4  well, if I put out my garbage I have to pay; if I

          5  put it in my sink in the food waste disposal I would

          6  save money.  Also it could happen as a matter of

          7  fact that if someone got on a strong advertising

          8  campaign to promote these that they could actually

          9  be increased, what would the Department do then?  Do

         10  you understand my question?  In other words, I

         11  understand right now they're not being used to a

         12  great extent.  But they could.

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  I think

         14  it's a question of monitoring the sewage system and

         15  monitoring the effects on the loadings into the

         16  treatment plants.  At the rate that we're going,

         17  even at the projected rate of one percent every

         18  year, it gives us time, as Commissioner Greeley was

         19  mentioning, to look at the sewers, see where there

         20  are areas that might be problematic, to monitor the

         21  issues and to come back and say, we either could or

         22  should not be continuing with letting residential

         23  installations continue.  So that slow penetration

         24  allows us to monitor, to look at the system, and

         25  allows us to assess the impacts and then go back and
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          2  make decisions accordingly.  If we have something on

          3  the commercial side, as we've all said, you would

          4  have immediate large scale use of garbage grinders

          5  and essentially it would overwhelm us.  We wouldn't

          6  have the time to react.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  If we were to

          8  use it on the commercial side, and obviously that's

          9  the incentive (sic) if you create an incentive on

         10  the residential side with a pay as you throw, you

         11  might get to that same situation.  On the commercial

         12  side, is the problem cost or system capacity?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  It's

         14  both.  On the commercial side, as the Commissioner's

         15  testimony indicated, there's a financial incentive

         16  for restaurants for one, but all food establishments

         17  in general, to immediately go out and do

         18  installations and immediately start disposing of

         19  their materials in the sewers rather than as a solid

         20  waste on pick ups.  That input would absolutely

         21  cause us a problem on the waste water side.  It

         22  would cause us a problem in terms of needing to

         23  expand the plants in order to meet the treatment

         24  levels that we're required by the federal government

         25  right now under consent orders.

                                                            27

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2                 In addition to that, you have the

          3  points mentioned by Commissioner Greeley regarding

          4  sedimentations and the settling in the sewers.  That

          5  would be exacerbated as well.  The other point we

          6  shouldn't neglect is as you accumulate materials in

          7  the bottoms of the sewers and you have that first

          8  big storm that comes in a flushes it, you're going

          9  to get this out as a CSO.  Some of it will end up in

         10  the treatment plant.  Some of it will end up out in

         11  the river and in the waterways.  Again as the

         12  Commissioner's testimony indicated, it's essentially

         13  putting the solid waste out into the waterways to a

         14  large extent during every storm condition.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Well certainly

         16  that goes to capacity.  But even on the cost side,

         17  you could certainly charge a fee, a sewer rent fee,

         18  or a use fee that would compensate for the cost.  In

         19  other words, there are many benefits.  And I think

         20  Commissioner Ward touched on this.  There are many

         21  benefits to the food waste disposals in residential

         22  and especially commercial.  You don't have the waste

         23  sitting outside and rotting and smelling.  You have

         24  a decrease in rat population.  You have a more

         25  orderly process.  And there would be a way to
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          2  capture the financial cost. I think you could look

          3  at putting fees on that.  Are you saying that it

          4  would be impossible from a physical plant side?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  There's

          6  two pieces. You're right, we could put a fee on it

          7  and the fee would offset some of the costs,

          8  certainly the operating costs.  The capital costs

          9  are very high.  And if you start looking at fees

         10  that would compensate for that high capital cost,

         11  the fees would probably be in excess of what they're

         12  paying now for solid waste disposal.  The other

         13  point that's mentioned in testimony, on a fee

         14  structure, you'd also be spreading that out to the

         15  general population as well as those who are taking

         16  advantage of it on the commercial side.

         17                 The costs aside, I want to go back to

         18  the impact on water quality going to CSOs.  You can

         19  charge a fee and that would handle the cost of

         20  treatment as high as that fee might be.  It might

         21  even be prohibitive.  You can charge that fee and

         22  expand the plants, assuming that's what you would

         23  want to do.  But you wouldn't be able to deal with

         24  the CSO piece, which is every time it rains you'd

         25  have an overflow into the waterways and basically a
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          2  degradation of water quality.  That's a piece that I

          3  think is very important and it's separate and aside

          4  from the money piece.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  In other words,

          6  you're saying even if costs were not an issue, the

          7  problem is the way the system is set up, with that

          8  CSO commingling when you have heavy rain water, that

          9  it could never work, to handle the extra load from

         10  the commercial food industry, or is there are way to

         11  make it work, in your mind?

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  You have

         13  to rebuild the whole system.

         14                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  We

         15  would have to rebuild probably portions of the

         16  system.  If you had a small, say a twelve inch

         17  combined sewer pipe.  And you had a large

         18  supermarket that was grinding leftover food and

         19  discharging it, you wouldn't necessarily be able to

         20  generate the flow within the sewer to take that

         21  volume of food away.  You would have to maybe look

         22  at repiping the system or in some cases making the

         23  piping smaller actually to get that material to

         24  move.  On other point, the rats would go

         25  underground.  If you're putting a food stream in the
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          2  sewers, they will exist very nicely down there.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  You see, every

          4  day I learn something new at City Hall that I would

          5  never have thought of.  I appreciate that.  They

          6  probably like it better under there, I guess, in

          7  some regard.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  It's

          9  warm and there are few predators.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Since the '97

         11  law which allowed the residential disposals, have

         12  you learned anything of significance from your

         13  colleagues in other municipalities in how they

         14  handle waste water treatment which involves

         15  increased residential food disposal?

         16                 COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  Essentially

         17  there's not much that we've learned from the other

         18  municipalities.  We do know that it's increased

         19  their loadings into the treatment plants.  We do

         20  know that it's caused them to do additional expenses

         21  if you will, to treat the additional waste.

         22  Philadelphia, for one, I know has had an increased

         23  operating cost as the result of having to add more

         24  air into the process.  They don't have the nutrient

         25  regulations that we have imposed on us as a result
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          2  of the consent order, so the level of additional

          3  cost would be much higher for us than for them.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Is Philadelphia

          5  a city that has added this into their system

          6  recently?  Obviously, there are some jurisdictions

          7  that have had them for a long time.  And then you

          8  have a jurisdiction like New York that never had

          9  them and just started in '97.  Are there other major

         10  cities who follow New York's pattern, who only now

         11  have begun to implement them?  Or has Philadelphia

         12  always had them?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:

         14  Philadelphia has only had them for a few years.  I

         15  don't know exactly how long.  I'm sure if it's

         16  before or right after '97.  The other cities that

         17  have always allowed garbage grinders that those

         18  cities that have a separate system.  They have a

         19  separate storm and sanitary system as opposed to the

         20  New York structure, which is a combined system.

         21  That's was causes us to have that CSO additional

         22  problem, aside from the loadings.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Council advises

         24  me that Philadelphia has recently mandated the use

         25  in commercial establishments of FWDs.  Have anyone
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          2  looked at that and seen the impact of that?  In a

          3  vacuum, it certainly makes sense to do it. You can

          4  see how from a garbage management point of view it

          5  makes sense.  It certainly sounds attractive.  I

          6  understand from the management of the sewer system

          7  it creates problems.  But there are a lot of

          8  benefits to it.  Do you know what the experience is

          9  with Philadelphia with commercial waste?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  No, I

         11  don't have information on Philadelphia with

         12  commercial waste.  That's got to be pretty new

         13  information, I'd say within the last six to eight

         14  months.  If there's any data on it it's probably

         15  being gathered right now.  I could tell you about

         16  Boston.  Boston did allow commercial garbage

         17  grinders a couple of years ago.  They do charge a

         18  fee, and my understanding is the fee is not a low

         19  fee.  It's pretty high.  In terms of transferring

         20  costs from either the solid waste side to the sewer

         21  disposal side, they're actually paying more money

         22  now than they were before.  I don't know what the

         23  impacts are on the treatment plant.  I don't have

         24  that information now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Why is it that
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          2  Philadelphia doesn't have the nutrient consent

          3  decree type of situation we have? Why are we in a

          4  worse situation?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  It's a

          6  question of the water body that they discharge into.

          7                 We're discharging into Long Island

          8  Sound or Jamaica Bay for the most part, and as a

          9  result, we have more stringent requirements.  It's

         10  the use of the water bodies that dictates what the

         11  quality of the water should be.  If you're

         12  discharging into a river that later on becomes the

         13  water source for another municipality, that's an

         14  even higher standard.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Can you foresee

         16  or perceive any situation whether commercial waste

         17  disposal could be used on a trial basis or an

         18  experimental basis similar to what we're doing now

         19  with the residential?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  I don't

         21  want to dismiss the idea of doing a trial.  The

         22  issues are still the same.  We do know that there

         23  will be an impact on CSOs.  We do know there will be

         24  an impact on settlement in the sewers and possible

         25  accumulations, as Commissioner Greeley mentioned,
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          2  and we do know that a broad or a large penetration

          3  of commercial grinders would cause a significant

          4  impact on the treatment plants.  In terms of could

          5  you or would you run a trial, it could be done, but

          6  I'm not sure what additional information it would

          7  give us beyond those things that we've already

          8  talked about in the testimony.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  The bill now is

         10  rather broad. Let me move to something else.  In

         11  reviewing the materials and looking at the current

         12  state of the law, it almost seems to me that it's

         13  not clear whether someone could install a commercial

         14  waste disposal or not.  Do you have an opinion on

         15  that?  Is it your opinion that they are prohibited

         16  by law right now?

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  My

         18  understanding is they are prohibited by law right

         19  now.  Residential are the only ones that are

         20  allowed, not required, but allowed, and commercials

         21  are not.  I believe the law is pretty clear.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  I think when we

         23  reviewed the law we found it was pretty ambiguous.

         24  In fact, when you leave I'm going to ask counsel to

         25  hand you a copy of our report.  If you could just
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          2  take a look at that just so we understand exactly

          3  what the law is.  I'm not saying it should go either

          4  way at this point, but to me it seems rather

          5  ambiguous, that there was no clear prohibition on

          6  it.  I think that's something that we have to look

          7  at jointly as well.

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER LOPEZ:  I think

          9  if I recall, the way the law is written, it allows

         10  residential garbage grinders and it's silent, if you

         11  will, on the commercials.  If you go back to the

         12  original law which basically prohibited all garbage

         13  grinders, the amendment, if you will, allows

         14  residentials.  And so by being silent on the

         15  commercials, you're kind of still not allowing them.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Okay.  Deputy

         17  Commissioners Greeley and Lopez, I want to thank you

         18  very much.  We look forward to further discussions

         19  on this issue.  Thank you very much for bringing

         20  your knowledge to the hearing today, and again, also

         21  for your patience.  Thank you very much.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:  Thank

         23  you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Our next

         25  speaker is Richard Muller from the Manhattan Borough
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          2  President's office, that's Manhattan Borough

          3  President C. Virginia Fields.

          4                 As everyone can imagine, City Hall is

          5  a buzz today with other hearings and we do have

          6  another hearing that has this room at one o'clock,

          7  as well as these things that are going on with the

          8  doomsday budget, so we'll ask all speakers to please

          9  keep it to the time clock after Mr. Muller, so that

         10  we can try to hear from everyone on this issue.

         11                 Before you begin, I just want to

         12  commend the Borough President for following all of

         13  the environmental issues.  You're certainly present

         14  at every one of our hearings and providing us with

         15  very good insight.  We appreciate it.

         16                 MR. MULLER:  Good morning Chairman

         17  McMahon, members and staff of the Committee.  My

         18  name is Rick Muller.  I'm here to represent

         19  Manhattan Borough President C. Virginia Fields.  The

         20  Borough President apologizes for not being able to

         21  attend this hearing, but she has asked me to testify

         22  on her behalf in support of Intro 407.

         23                 Borough President Fields has been a

         24  strong proponent of commercial food waste disposals

         25  for the past two years.  Her support for their use
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          2  arose out of two concerns: The growing rat problem

          3  in Manhattan, and carting companies refusing to

          4  contract with food establishments.  In the summer of

          5  2000, the Borough President received over 400 rat

          6  related complaints through her rat hotline and from

          7  community groups.  Many of her constituents had

          8  alleged that increases in rats and other types of

          9  vermin were partly due to accumulating commercial

         10  food waste on the streets.              Interestingly

         11  , the commercial food preparation industry had also

         12  begun to approach her about exponential increases in

         13  garbage carting costs, and their concern that

         14  restaurants and food markets would eventually be

         15  unable to remove their solid waste.  Already, many

         16  food establishments have become the victims of poor

         17  service from carting companies, and some have even

         18  had their contracts dropped by the carters.  Many of

         19  these establishments were actually unable to find

         20  new companies to remove their garbage.

         21                 Consequently, the Borough President

         22  decided to look for solutions that would address

         23  this food waste carting problem, and in return,

         24  address the ever growing quality of life and public

         25  health problem of rats.  Borough President Fields
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          2  and her staff began to research food waste

          3  disposers, otherwise known as garbage grinders, and

          4  the potential effects of their use by commercial

          5  food establishments.  In particular, we researched

          6  the city of Philadelphia's sewage system which, as

          7  you probably know, not only allows commercial food

          8  establishments to use food waste disposers, but

          9  actually mandates their use by most of the city's

         10  food establishments.

         11                 Based on discussions with management

         12  in charge of developing and implementing a

         13  commercial food waste disposer off of Philadelphia's

         14  Department of Water, we have learned several things.

         15  1)  Water use did not significantly increase after

         16  the city's food preparation industry was mandated to

         17  install food waste disposers. 2)  Philadelphia's

         18  southeast waste water treatment plant, which serves

         19  the downtown section of Philadelphia and handles the

         20  bulk of the city's restaurant waste water

         21  proportionally has the lowest nitrogen levels of all

         22  three of the city's treatment plants.  3) Since the

         23  commercial food was disposer mandate, the water

         24  department has not seen significant increases in

         25  biochemical oxygen demand or total suspended solid
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          2  levels.

          3                 Certainly with a population of 2.2

          4  million, Philadelphia is a smaller city than New

          5  York.  The two city's sewage systems, however, might

          6  be somewhat comparable.  New York City's 6,400 miles

          7  of multisized sewage pipes lead to fourteen plants

          8  that treat 1.3 billion gallons of sewage per day.

          9  Philadelphia's system comprises 3,000 miles of

         10  multisized pipes which lead to three plants which

         11  process 475 millions gallons of sewage per day.  On

         12  a daily basis, New York City treats about 163

         13  gallons of sewage per capita, while Philadelphia

         14  treats about 216 gallons per capita.

         15                 Although we are not clear how old New

         16  York City's system is, we imagine that it is

         17  comparable to the age of Philadelphia's system which

         18  has sewage pipes that date back to the days of

         19  Benjamin Franklin, waste water treatment plants that

         20  were built between 1923 and the 1950s.  Of course,

         21  while the treatment methods of the two systems and

         22  the environmental concerns of the two cities may

         23  differ somewhat, certainly the nominal impact that

         24  Philadelphia's mandate on water use and waste water

         25  nutrient content minimally warrants a study of the
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          2  impact of commercial grinders on New York City's

          3  system.

          4                 Moreover, Philadelphia has over 1,700

          5  commercial food establishments that are mandated to

          6  use commercial food waste disposers, while New York

          7  City has approximately 21,000 licensed food

          8  establishments.  It seems that if Intro 407 was

          9  implemented, on average, New York City's food waste

         10  loadings into the system would be proportionally

         11  less than those from Philadelphia's establishments.

         12  For the past two years, the Borough President has

         13  advocated for a pilot study to examine the impact of

         14  commercial food waste disposers on New York City's

         15  sewage system.  The Borough President has even

         16  suggested in her 2001 State of the Borough Address

         17  that a pilot study be conducted in the restaurant

         18  row section of Clinton, which is an area that has a

         19  high concentration of restaurants and could show us

         20  the implications of significant amounts of food

         21  waste loadings on this City's sewage system.

         22                 Thus, while Borough President Fields

         23  supports Intro 407, she believes that legislation

         24  for the implementation of a pilot study, similar to

         25  the 1995 study done on residential food waste
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          2  disposers, would answer the many outstanding

          3  questions that environmentalists and engineers have

          4  about the use of commercial food waste disposers.

          5  The Borough President strongly believes that a

          6  potential solution to both the public health problem

          7  of rats and to the carting problem should not be

          8  dismissed without minimally a study of its

          9  feasibility.  Borough President Fields, therefore,

         10  looks forward to working with the Department of

         11  Environmental Protections and the commercial food

         12  establishment industry to thoroughly examine whether

         13  commercial food waste disposers are possible in New

         14  York City.  Thank you for the opportunity to comment

         15  this morning.  I'd be happy to answer any questions.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Muller.  Do you know, does Philadelphia have the

         18  joint system, the CSO, where the storm water goes

         19  with the regular sewage?

         20                 MR. MULLER:  I have to tell you it's

         21  our Policy Analyst Naomi Feldman who does this, and

         22  she had to host a meeting, so I can get you that

         23  answer, I'm sure.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  That would be

         25  something worth looking into.  I think the idea of a
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          2  pilot study is also a very good idea.  Just on the

          3  issue of rats, you heard what the Deputy

          4  Commissioner said about the rat problem, that we

          5  would not be solving the rat problem.  Any comment

          6  on that?

          7                 MR. MULLER:  It's an issue of grease

          8  traps.  Of course, compliance with the law is always

          9  a problem with establishments, and you have to make

         10  sure that people follow the law.  But the grease

         11  traps, if they're used and if they're properly

         12  maintained, prevent the entry of grease into the

         13  system.  Maybe that's another unanswered question

         14  that a pilot study could look at.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 MR. MULLER:  Thank you so much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  What we would

         19  like to do is call up three speakers together.  The

         20  first panel would be Stewart O'Brien from the

         21  Plumbing Foundation, E. Charles Hunt from the New

         22  York State Restaurant Association, and Richard

         23  Lipsky from the Neighborhood Retail Alliance.

         24                 Calling Mr. Lipsky?  There he is.

         25                 MR. O'BRIEN:  Let me get started
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          2  since I'm sitting in the middle.  My name is Stewart

          3  O'Brien, Chairman McMahon and Members of the

          4  Committee, I serve as Executive Director of the

          5  Plumbing Foundation.  Let me just describe the

          6  Plumbing Foundation as the public policy arm of the

          7  City's license to plumbing industry.  You have

          8  copies of my testimony and I know you're short on

          9  time so I'm going to skip over a little bit in my

         10  comments on Intro 381 with three statements.

         11                 Each year, more than five million

         12  garbage grinders are sold in the United States.

         13  Over 50% of households have a garbage grinder, which

         14  jumps to over 80% of new homes.  If you trust the

         15  marketplace, that's a pretty good endorsement for

         16  disposers.  Over 100 cities including Los Angeles,

         17  Philadelphia, Detroit, Denver, require the

         18  installation of garbage grinders.  In many cases,

         19  they've been required for decades.  As with the

         20  debate in the mid 1990s, City Council must exercise,

         21  we believe, it's leadership role in investigating,

         22  assessing, and determining the best interest of the

         23  City as a whole as to whether residential disposers

         24  should now be mandated in new construction.

         25                 The basis for Local Law 71, as you've
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          2  pointed out, was a report done by DEP in 1997.  That

          3  report thoroughly examined every imaginable aspect

          4  of food waste disposers before the matter was

          5  resolved in favor of full legalization.  Indeed,

          6  nearly every concern analyzed in that report, and

          7  I've got a copy here, DEP's finding was that the

          8  impact would be de minimus.  I'll repeat that again,

          9  the 1997 report determined that on a one percent

         10  penetration rate, which is 30,000 units a year, that

         11  the impact on the various things including nitrogen,

         12  the things the Commissioner testified, would be de

         13  minimus.  That's a DEP report not an industry

         14  report.

         15                 Now let me ask a few rhetorical

         16  questions related to the need for the Council's

         17  consideration of Intro 381.  Why outside of New York

         18  City are residential garbage grinder disposers

         19  universally accepted by the public and actually

         20  encouraged by public policy?  Given these benefits,

         21  why isn't New York's adoption of food waste

         22  disposers taken so long?  What could reasonably be

         23  done to expand the current use?  The first question,

         24  universal acceptance.  Improving the public health

         25  I'll skip over.  You've already testified about the
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          2  rat issue.  Reducing garbage collection, I mean,

          3  it's quite clear that the food waste in New York

          4  City is approximately twice the national average.

          5  Fifteen percent of garbage in New York City is food

          6  waste, while only 7%, and that can be attributed

          7  almost entirely to the standard use of food waste

          8  disposers elsewhere in the country.  That's a major

          9  difference.

         10                 In one recent pilot project, the

         11  Plumbing Foundation installed disposers in two

         12  firehouses in Queens.  A study conducted by the

         13  Department of Sanitation, not an industry study, by

         14  the Department of Sanitation found a 21% reduction

         15  in waste by weight generated by those firehouses

         16  after just a few weeks.  And of course, diverting

         17  food waste from landfills would obviously be a

         18  savings.

         19                 If the point of legalizing

         20  residential disposers was to capture the public

         21  benefits, the correlate is obvious.  The City must

         22  achieve a critical mass of disposer installations

         23  for encouraging or mandating the use.  That

         24  explanations why disposers have been effectively

         25  mandated for decades in over 100 cities, not small
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          2  cities, large cities.  In New York, without such a

          3  mandate, such a critical mass of disposer use has

          4  been more difficult to accomplish.  Two bright

          5  spots.  Recently the New York City Housing Authority

          6  and Battery Park City Authority have begun

          7  installing food waste disposers primarily because of

          8  those concerns.

          9                 Why is it taking so long in New York

         10  City?  Despite its modern image, New York is a late

         11  adopter of this decades old technology, suffering

         12  from a continued lack of familiarity, and therefore

         13  a weaker demand.

         14                 Also, when you're dealing with

         15  retrofits, the cost is significantly higher.  You've

         16  got to rip out some stuff.  Do some electrical

         17  stuff.  So it costs a few hundred dollars.  When

         18  you're dealing with new installations, free garbage

         19  collection provided by the City effectively

         20  dissuades developers from installing those units.

         21  There's no benefit to the developer.  Why should

         22  they, it's free.  You pick up the garbage for free.

         23  The Department of Sanitation is the agency most

         24  likely to define the public benefit from eliminating

         25  food waste through your disposers. I obviously can't
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          2  speak for them, but the facts, though, are clear.

          3  According to a 2000 study prepared for the

          4  department, 380,000 tons of food waste are generated

          5  in New York City each year.  If only a fraction of

          6  that food waste was diverted out of the garbage

          7  collection systems, the cost savings would be

          8  significant.

          9                 Over the last year or two we

         10  considered the concept of a short term solution.  A

         11  short term insulation subsidy, akin to that used

         12  effectively for low flow toilets.  But we have

         13  acknowledge that funds aren't available for that,

         14  but we continue to talk to the various agencies.  To

         15  the third question, what's reasonably to be done?

         16  I'm almost finished here.

         17                 Let's look at the numbers.  In its

         18  1997 report, DEP suggested that a marked penetration

         19  rate of one percent or approximately 30,000 out of

         20  three million housing units could be tolerated.

         21  They kept on saying in the report that the effect

         22  would be de minimus.

         23                 However, since 1997, the best

         24  estimates regarding disposer installation are

         25  approximately 5,000 a year.  According to a
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          2  buildings congress report, new construction in New

          3  York City generates about 12,000 new construction

          4  units a year.  Therefore, in terms of numbers of

          5  disposers this bill would cause to be installed, we

          6  believe this proposal would cause approximately

          7  15,000 disposers to be installed annually.  That

          8  number does not come close to the parameters

          9  provided by DEP in its 1997 study, but would begin

         10  to develop that critical mass that would tip the

         11  balance and allow for the public benefits that are

         12  recognized in many other cities to be recognized in

         13  New York City.

         14                 In closing my comments on Intro 381,

         15  we believe New York City would benefit greatly from

         16  mandating the installation of food waste disposers

         17  in newly constructed residences, and the environment

         18  and fiscal benefits.  I'll pass on the commercial

         19  because we've got two people here I think they'll

         20  speak more eloquently than I am.  But I'm available

         21  for any questions you may have.

         22                 MR. HUNT:  Good morning, Mr. Chairman

         23  and Members of the Committee.  Thank you for this

         24  opportunity to comment on Intro 407 proposing to

         25  authorize the installation of food waste disposal
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          2  units in commercial establishments.  My name is E.

          3  Charles Hunt, I'm the Executive Vice President of

          4  the Greater New York City Chapters of the New York

          5  State Restaurant Association, a not for profit trade

          6  association.

          7                 Our membership is made up of over

          8  70,000 food service operations in New York State,

          9  about 40% of which are located within the five

         10  boroughs of New York City.  These operations range

         11  in size from the largest world renowned restaurant

         12  to small, family owned, neighborhood establishments.

         13    All of the Members of this Committee, I wish they

         14  were all here, have food service establishments in

         15  your districts.  And I'm sure you appreciate their

         16  contributions to the City's economy through the jobs

         17  they provide and the services they offer.

         18                 Restaurants have been presented with

         19  a great many difficulties over the last few years,

         20  not the least of which has been problems associated

         21  with the disposal of their solid waste. A

         22  significant part of the waste generated by a food

         23  service operation is, as the language of the

         24  proposed law says, putrescible solid food waste, or

         25  heavy, wet material that accumulates during the food
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          2  preparation and dish washing processes.  The weight

          3  concentration of food waste has created problems for

          4  the commercial waste haulers, many of which

          5  cancelled or refused to serve restaurant clients.

          6  The food waste also creates sanitation problems,

          7  attracting insects, rodents, and other vermin as it

          8  awaits collection either within the food service

          9  establishment or at the curb.

         10                 The installation of commercial grade

         11  waste disposers or garbage grinders could help

         12  alleviate these problems.  Without the heavy, wet

         13  material, a much greater percentage of food service

         14  generated waste could be recycled, reducing the

         15  pressure on distant landfills.  Waste haulers would

         16  have more reason to compete for restaurant clients

         17  rather than to shun them.  Restaurateurs can

         18  advertise their investment in the commercial grade

         19  disposers from the savings created by their use.

         20                 I have had direct conversation with

         21  my counterpart in Philadelphia's restaurant trade

         22  association group.  Since 1990, in the City of

         23  Philadelphia, a restaurant is required to have a

         24  commercial food waste disposal unit in order to be

         25  granted a permit for a dumpster.  I have copies of a

                                                            51

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  brochure here with those dates in it, if you would

          3  like to examine it.

          4                 My contact in Philadelphia indicated

          5  the requirement had worked very well for her

          6  members.  She was not aware of any problems created

          7  for the city.  To us, Intro 407 is a simple bill

          8  that will just clear up a simple question.  Local

          9  Law 74 or 71 as I've heard it referred to here this

         10  morning of 1997 which legalized food waste disposers

         11  in New York City residences is silent on whether

         12  commercial units may be installed.  Thus, many

         13  plumbers have been reluctant to install them.

         14  Passage of this bill would clearly authorize their

         15  use.  In doing so, the Council would help many of

         16  the City's businesses solve several immediate

         17  problems, and also be acting positively in the

         18  public's behalf.  We urge you to pass this bill.

         19  Thank you.

         20                 MR. LIPSKY:  Thank you.  Chairman

         21  McMahon, I appreciate your sponsorship of Intro 407.

         22    Councilman Serrano, we also appreciate your

         23  sponsorship of 407.  Let me start off by just making

         24  a couple of points not in my written testimony.

         25  What's extraordinary to me, Mr. Chairman, is that
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          2  the Borough President of Manhattan and a

          3  representative of a trade association, Chuck Hunt,

          4  have more information on what's going on in

          5  Philadelphia than DEP does.  It seems to me that to

          6  get up before the City Council and to make

          7  statements about costs and dangers without having

          8  done a due diligence about what is the experience in

          9  other municipalities is irresponsible to say the

         10  least.

         11                 Secondly what I would say is that the

         12  issue of food waste disposers is not something that

         13  is only within the purview of the Department of

         14  Environmental Protection.  Clearly, the cost of food

         15  waste disposals adhere greatest to that department,

         16  but the benefits adhere to other departments who

         17  aren't here and haven't offered to testify.  I'd

         18  like to know what the Commissioner of Health would

         19  say, since I think the Department of Health is one

         20  of the partners in the effort to install food waste

         21  disposers in the housing projects.  I'd like to know

         22  what sanitation would actually say because the

         23  original pilot study relied heavily on their

         24  analysis of what the impact of this would be on the

         25  residential sector, in particular.
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          2                 I think it's incumbent upon the

          3  Council to ask this Administration to speak in a

          4  multiplicity of voices but come to a general

          5  conclusion by looking at the cost benefit analysis

          6  overall, and not just in terms of what the impact on

          7  DEP may or may not be, as much as they'd like to

          8  pull away from the conclusions that they came to in

          9  1997, in the absence of any other data, those are

         10  the conclusions that are public record before us

         11  today.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  If I could just

         13  respond to that.  Let me say that this is the first

         14  hearing on these two bills and we will certainly

         15  have another and invite other members of the

         16  Administration to come.  We all have to be cognizant

         17  of the fact that this is a day that the

         18  Administration understandably all of the

         19  Commissioners have their hands full with the

         20  announcement of the "doomsday budget" and I say that

         21  with all seriousness.  We are mindful that there are

         22  other parts of the City that we have to speak with,

         23  and the Mayor's representative has been very

         24  cooperative in arranging that, and we will do that.

         25  Certainly we understand the severity of the issues.
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          2  I just want to say that this is just the first step

          3  in the hearing.

          4                 While we spend time to find out the

          5  cause of the beep, I want to point out that we were

          6  joined by Council Member Yassky and we also have

          7  with use Jose Serrano, my colleague from the Bronx,

          8  and Robert Jackson, my colleague from Manhattan, two

          9  Members of the Committee.  So go ahead, Mr. Lipsky,

         10  please.

         11                 MR. HUNT:  It was probably one of my

         12  restaurants complaining about the cost of garbage

         13  disposal.  I appreciate your comments, Mr. Chairman.

         14    I wasn't making my statement to cast any

         15  aspersions on the Administration, but just to point

         16  out how this issue impacts many different sectors

         17  besides the Department of Environmental Protection.

         18                 I would like to make a statement.

         19  Your colleague isn't here and we've had discussions

         20  with Chairman Gennaro on this issue.  There seems to

         21  be a common perception that the Councilman made and

         22  I want to respond to it, why should the City pay for

         23  the private disposal costs of commercial businesses?

         24    I want to address that because it's a

         25  philosophical question but it's very important.    We
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          2  have 19,000 restaurants, 1,200 supermarkets, 13,000

          3  bodegas, and a host of other businesses throughout

          4  this City that use food products.  These businesses

          5  contribute millions of dollars in tax revenues to

          6  the City treasury, employ hundreds of thousands of

          7  people.  We have revitalized neighborhoods all over

          8  this City.  To look at them in an adversarial way as

          9  somehow -- these are citizens.  These are productive

         10  citizens of this City and people you look to,

         11  especially during times of budget crisis, because as

         12  you know, over the last year, things like commercial

         13  rent, real estate taxes, have been passed along to

         14  20 and 25% rent increases for neighborhood stores.

         15  There's been tremendous increase.  9/11 has had a

         16  devastating increase on local grocery stores.  It's

         17  a difficult time.  We're in this together.

         18                 What we're asking you in terms of

         19  this legislation is to look at ways in which we can

         20  make these businesses more viable.  We can take some

         21  of their costs away, and I'm sorry and I hope that

         22  we can at some point have Commissioner Maldonado

         23  here as well, the fact is that the Commissioner is

         24  trying to back away from what seems to be self

         25  evident, which is that if the rate of garbage
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          2  disposal is too low for a carter to make a profit,

          3  and we need to raise the cap, then logically, the

          4  internal logic of his decision will mean that once

          5  that cap is raised, the price of garbage collection

          6  will go up.  Now he has said publicly it may not be

          7  eight dollars a hundred pounds, it may only be six

          8  and a half. Eight dollars a hundred pounds is $40 a

          9  cubic yard for supermarkets.  The current rate is

         10  $12.20.  If it only goes to six and a half, it's $32

         11  a cubic yard.  This is a two and three hundred

         12  percent increase of the garbage disposal costs.

         13  We're looking for ways to mitigate these costs

         14  because the stores can't maintain their

         15  profitability.  They can't continue to employ as

         16  many people as they employed if you continue to pass

         17  on burdens to them that they then have to take out

         18  of their bottom line.  So what we're asking you to

         19  do here is to look at those businesses as productive

         20  citizens of your neighborhood.

         21                 Secondly, the average supermarket

         22  gets three pick ups a week.  These pick ups are

         23  noisy.  These pick ups bring trucks into your

         24  neighborhoods.  We introduce food waste disposers

         25  and we take that three time a week pick up and we
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          2  reduce it to one.  The truck traffic is lessened in

          3  the City.  The transfer station activity is lessened

          4  in the City.  The export of garbage is lessened in

          5  the City.  And I think that once we have full

          6  penetration of food waste disposers in this City,

          7  the mom and pop transfer stations that are so

          8  disruptive to so many neighborhoods will be phased

          9  out.

         10                 The final point I would like to make,

         11  the City spends $300 million plus disposing of its

         12  garbage.  They are building marine transfer stations

         13  or at least we think they are. We have a leap of

         14  faith here.  Ultimately, all the commercial garbage

         15  and all the residential garbage will be channeled to

         16  those marine transfer stations.  If we take out so

         17  much of this putrescible waste, the capital costs

         18  are going to be lessened.  The cost of exporting

         19  garbage is going to be lessened.  The amount of

         20  public benefit that the City and the City's

         21  neighborhoods and the City's businesses are going to

         22  accrue is going to far outweigh the costs that DEP

         23  is alleging today.  I thank you for your time and we

         24  look forward to working with the Committee in moving

         25  the legislation forward.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Is anyone else

          3  giving testimony here?

          4                 MR. MULLER:  I would just like to

          5  make one more comment which I thought might come out

          6  in questions.  The Commissioner of the DEP indicated

          7  that his projections were based on the fact that

          8  because of the financial incentives that restaurants

          9  would immediately, all restaurants would jump on the

         10  bandwagon and install these units.  I must tell you

         11  that as much as I love my members and I love our

         12  industry, they're technophobes, some of them.  In

         13  fact, I still have guys that are wondering whether

         14  or not they should get a fax machine.  You're not

         15  going to see 100%.  I'd be surprised if you saw 30%

         16  over the first five years like you did in

         17  residences.  Please take that into consideration

         18  when you look at these figures.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Mr. Hunt, do

         20  you think that's even the case where there could

         21  clearly be a financial incentive to installing the

         22  commercial food waste disposers?  As Mr. Lipsky

         23  rightly pointed out, we're dealing on the one hand

         24  trying to look at what's going to happen with the

         25  carting piece for the small businesses, and we're
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          2  doing our best, by the way, to try and get a handle

          3  on where that's going.  Certainly if I had a small

          4  business and I knew that was coming I'd get one of

          5  these installed.

          6                 MR. HUNT:  Sure.  No, I agree

          7  completely with what Richard is saying.  What I'm

          8  saying is that there are 21,950 food service

          9  operations plus all these supermarkets and bodegas

         10  you've heard about and, believe me, it's going to

         11  take a while to get the word out on this.  Even

         12  though it's in all the papers and in the media for a

         13  day or two, it will take a while for the reality of

         14  this to come about.  I would urge all my members to

         15  do it immediately.  I agree.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Do you know

         17  from your conversations with a colleague in

         18  Philadelphia whether or not they have the combined

         19  system that we have?

         20                 MR. HUNT:  They do not.

         21                 MR. LIPSKY:  I believe they have.  We

         22  can verify that, but I'm pretty sure they do.  I

         23  want to apologize.  I did not introduce Kendall

         24  Christiansen who is a partner in this presentation.

         25  Again, I offer the Committee the 1997 report which I
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          2  counted ten different references to the de minimus

          3  nature of 30,000 units being installed every year.

          4  I just want to remind the Committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  I appreciate

          6  the introduction of Mr. Christiansen for the record,

          7  but you can be sure that he is no stranger to the

          8  Committee.  You can be sure he has given us numerous

          9  copies of this study.  Every time I leave City Hall

         10  there's another one affixed to my windshield.

         11  That's why I'm trying to get that law that will make

         12  putting flyers on the windshield a littering offense

         13  so that I can alleviate that situation.  Mr.

         14  Christianson?

         15                 MR. CHRISTIANSEN:  Having been

         16  introduced now, another interested party with us who

         17  brought testimony today but wasn't able to stay to

         18  deliver it because of scheduling and that's the

         19  Battery Park City Authority which has a statement

         20  describing their determination a year ago to begin

         21  requiring disposers in their new residential

         22  buildings that they're constructing these in very

         23  progressive, aggressive state- of- the- art

         24  environmental guidelines.  So there's a statement

         25  from the Battery Park City Authority and some
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          2  additional materials for your consideration.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  I understand.

          4  And your comments are very well taken.  From a solid

          5  waste management point of view, it hasn't been

          6  mentioned either from a pro- recycling point of

          7  view, the greatest contaminant to residential or

          8  commercial waste that impedes recycle is the

          9  putrescible waste and we're certainly aware of that.

         10    What we have to look at, what the affects would be

         11  on the City's sewage system, and that's very much

         12  the purpose of this hearing.  But we appreciate your

         13  advocacy on behalf of those you represent.  My

         14  favorite constituents are those who own small

         15  commercial food industries and we've been working

         16  with them very closely on numerous issues and the

         17  point you make that they are in many ways the

         18  backbone of the City's economy and yet they're put

         19  under the most stress is one that's made aware to me

         20  every day by my friends and neighbors at home.  We

         21  appreciate that.  And we will work it.

         22                 MR. LIPSKY:  The other point, Mr.

         23  Chairman, because you're so familiar with it but I

         24  think it's needs to be said since the Borough

         25  President's spokesperson mentioned it, the operation

                                                            62

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  dumpster, I saw you in the hearing trying to find

          3  some way to get the Commissioner of Sanitation to

          4  find some middle ground with the real difficulty --

          5  when you say love small grocery stores, not

          6  supermarkets in this case, with no storage space and

          7  they can't store the garbage outside and we

          8  sympathize.  It smells, it attracts rodents, it

          9  attracts insects, so now the solution is put it back

         10  into the food store.  And what we're saying here is,

         11  the same problem now becomes the food store problem,

         12  and what food waste disposers do is the same health

         13  benefits that you get by installing it in the

         14  housing authority, you get by installing it in your

         15  food stores to make them cleaner.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Right.  It's

         17  also for the homeowners or apartment dwellers who

         18  live in a mixed use area, which is a lot of my

         19  district, where you have the stores and restaurants

         20  and supermarkets against the homes.  Certainly for

         21  them it's a quality of life issue as well, because

         22  you remove that portion of the garbage which causes

         23  smell and the rat problem.  So we hear you and we

         24  thank you very much for coming and we look forward

         25  to working with you.  Any questions from my
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          2  colleagues? No?  Okay, thank you very much

          3  gentlemen.

          4                 Our next panel is Tony Speelman from

          5  UFCW 1500, Luis Salcedo from the National

          6  Supermarket Association, Jose Fernandez from the

          7  Bodega Association of the United States, and back

          8  with us again, Sung Soo Kim from the Korean Small

          9  Business Congress.

         10                 Very good.  Hi, good to see you

         11  again.  Please introduce yourself.

         12                 MR. SPEELMAN:  Good afternoon,

         13  Chairman.  My name is Tony Speelman, I'm the

         14  Political Director, United Food and Commercial

         15  Workers, and I thank you for taking the time to hear

         16  our testimony.  While I'm not a scientific expert

         17  and I'm not here to address those issues, I want to

         18  give some testimony on behalf of our industry, the

         19  supermarket industry, for a different reason. For

         20  the jobs that they represent in the City of New

         21  York, and the 22,000 members I represent in the City

         22  of New York in the supermarket industry.

         23                 Our concern, as you've heard from

         24  some previous testimony is that, when the garbage

         25  rates can possibly go up from $650 a month to $2,000
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          2  a month, which is possible, quite honestly, our

          3  companies that work on pennies on the dollar, and

          4  combine that with all the other expenses that have

          5  gone up over the last couple of years, quite

          6  honestly, I don't normally come before you pitching

          7  for the companies.  Usually I'm doing the battling

          8  with these gentleman.  But you know what?  When they

          9  employ my members, and there's a chance that many of

         10  these stores will be forced to close, I come before

         11  you to try and find a happy medium.  We are in favor

         12  of Intro 407 and would ask that eventually this bill

         13  gets passed and allows the implementation of the

         14  disposal units in the stores.

         15                 Some of the other points I'd just

         16  like to make briefly, two points is, that if they

         17  allow the disposals to be put in, we estimate that

         18  the garbage will go down by 70% almost, in the flow

         19  of garbage.  The other thing is, I think Richard

         20  testified for this, is we believe our other job in

         21  the supermarkets is keeping them clean.  Quite

         22  honestly, we believe that the elimination of this

         23  garbage would help that process.  So I just ask that

         24  you consider it and we are in favor it.  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Speelman.  It's a pleasure to have you before our

          3  Committee.  Thank you.

          4                 MR. SALCEDO:  My name is Luis Salcedo

          5  and I'm from the National Supermarket Association.

          6  Like the gentleman here, not with scientific

          7  knowledge of this issue, I want to say that most of

          8  the stuff that I had in mind for testimony has been

          9  very eloquently stated.  But with the issue of

         10  supermarkets particularly, we have three major

         11  issues at hand this year.  One is this one, the

         12  garbage situation.  The fact that we can no longer

         13  put a container outside forces us into different

         14  issues into possibly having to create refrigeration

         15  space inside the supermarket to be able to hold the

         16  garbage during the summer months.

         17                 The increase that we could get if

         18  this legislation is not passed from six hundred and

         19  something dollars a month to about two thousand

         20  dollars a month which equal almost $18,000 a year,

         21  while we have insurance, major problems with

         22  insurance increases up to 300%.  I'm going to give

         23  you one example.  One of our members who owns three

         24  stores, his insurance for the three stores runs from

         25  $67,000 to $171,000 a year.  Major issues.  And then
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          2  we have the other big issue for us which relates to

          3  garbage and everything else which is the bottle

          4  bills that is also around the corner somewhere which

          5  we are also trying to fight.

          6                 I've got to tell you that if these

          7  three issues are not worked on and protected, our

          8  industry is going to be, I think around 50% of the

          9  stores around will have to close.  Every body works

         10  in pennies in the supermarket business.  A lot of

         11  guys, they're small stores, no room for storage, no

         12  space.  If you get a 300% increase in insurance and

         13  you get $1,700 increase a month in garbage disposal,

         14  and then we get the bottle bills which forces us

         15  into bringing another additional 500 containers that

         16  are to be put into the supermarkets, we are in for a

         17  crisis.

         18                 Again, this employment, tax revenues,

         19  and again, not with scientific evidence, I went to

         20  Philadelphia, I went to Florida, and I see basically

         21  that these cities are cleaner than our City.  They

         22  are using the system.  In Florida particularly, and

         23  again without scientifics, everybody knows that the

         24  water is right under your feet.  So their sewer

         25  system must be a little more delicate than ours, and
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          2  yet they use the system and the city and everything

          3  looks so much better.  I don't understand why in New

          4  York we have so much, I will say it without having

          5  to offend anybody, bureaucratic opposition to this

          6  stuff.  We need your help. Otherwise we are going to

          7  be in real trouble.  Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you for

          9  your continued advocacy on small businesses you

         10  represent.  It's good to see you again.  Mr. Kim?

         11                 MR. KIM:  Thank you, Chairman

         12  McMahon.  My name is Sung Soo Kim.  I am from the

         13  Korean Small Business Center and also representing

         14  Congress, Inc. In the City of New York.  I stopped

         15  to think about something -- that I'm sitting in

         16  Chairman McMahon's position and what I can do in

         17  this situation.  First impression, it seems like

         18  you're trying to put the cart in front of the horse.

         19  The garbage fee is going to be raised by triple, at

         20  least double this summer.  Dumpster operation is

         21  effective, we have to get rid of all the dumpsters.

         22  Now, even though it's late, still I'm pleased that

         23  this Chairman is now introducing this Intro 407,

         24  which was favored.  It's not the remedy, but it

         25  greatly helps.  I learned that the negative impact
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          2  of implementing Local Law 47 would be minimum.  I

          3  think, technically it can be adjusted in terms of

          4  money and finance matters, you can charge a

          5  surcharge just like you're doing for the sugar waste

          6  from the bakery store.  There's a surcharge rate,

          7  it's very high, seventeen point something.  I

          8  believe there can be feasibility, there can be

          9  adjusted to have this disposal thing working.

         10                 I want to give you one example of how

         11  seriously we will face in the future after the

         12  commercial dumpster rate increase.  I have a fish

         13  store on Sutphin Boulevard.  Right now he's paying

         14  $4,500 per month.  Based on the 1,100 lbs., carting

         15  is charged like this.  It's going to be $8 per 100

         16  lbs., it's going to end up $12,000 per month.  Per

         17  year, $150,000 for garbage fees. Suppose we spend

         18  money for installing this grinder, it costs around

         19  seven to fourteen thousand dollars.  We guarantee

         20  80% reduction, so out of $150,000, take down

         21  $10,000.  Take down twenty or twenty five thousand.

         22  Now it's over $100,000.  Mr. Lee's fish store, I

         23  can't blame him if he's in violation by breaking the

         24  law.  He's going to pay to install the machine to

         25  save $100,000 per year. This is a very, very serious
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          2  message.  I just had a commercial waste mainstream

          3  survey from 700 members last month which clearly

          4  shows the ranking is approaching the rate hike this

          5  summer from ranking third to ranking two.   This is

          6  a very, very serious message.

          7                 Lastly, this is one solution but

          8  there are other things.  I've been involved in

          9  studying bringing out the food waste to a composting

         10  company in New Jersey.  It helps my members used to

         11  the garbage charge by half, more than 60% right now.

         12    I'm appealing to the City government, to your

         13  authority, to seriously consider as I previously

         14  mentioned, consider to work out something for

         15  example, making good efforts to make some joint

         16  operation with the City government and community to

         17  develop a centralized composting to take care of

         18  this waste from the restaurant and fish market.

         19                 Right now, all the established

         20  composting companies only take care of produce, not

         21  fish, not from restaurants.  This is the way.  Any

         22  way, I admire your leadership.  To now start to

         23  consider our problem and these others problems.

         24  Thank you and I really hope Intro 407 will be

         25  passed.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you, Mr.

          3  Kim.  It's good to see you again.  Your constituents

          4  are certainly well represented by you, that's for

          5  sure.  The idea that you mentioned about composting,

          6  certainly the most enlightened approach, the most

          7  practical approach, and that's certainly the one

          8  that we -- that's why it makes it more difficult to

          9  get the Administration to see that, but that's

         10  something that we continue to advocate and try to

         11  advance.  And all the issues that you bring up, that

         12  you all bring up about what your members face on the

         13  employment side and the employee side we are doing

         14  our best and we look forward to working with you.

         15  Thank you.

         16                 MR. KIM:  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  We have one

         18  more panel and we're very much on schedule, that's

         19  wonderful.  Cathleen Breen from NYPIRG, Eric

         20  Goldstein from the Natural Resources Defense

         21  Council, and Tim Logan from New York City's Waste

         22  Prevention Coalition.  Go ahead, Ms. Breen.

         23                 MS. BREEN:  Thank you.  Good

         24  afternoon.  My name is Cathleen Breen, I'm the

         25  Watershed Protection Coordinator for the New York
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          2  Public Interest Research Group, NYPIRG.  Thank you

          3  for the opportunity to comment on the proposed

          4  amendments to the administrative code of the City of

          5  New York in relation to the installation of food

          6  waste disposals in both commercial establishments,

          7  where the sale of food is a significant portion of

          8  business activities, and residences.

          9                 NYPIRG is New York State's largest

         10  research and advocacy, not for profit organization,

         11  primarily focused on environment preservation,

         12  consumer protection, government reform, and public

         13  health issues.  NYPIRG is one of the five

         14  environmental organizations that are signatories to

         15  the 1997 Memorandum of Agreement which is the

         16  watershed agreement, and actively worked to protect

         17  not only New York City's unfiltered water supply,

         18  but the water quality of all of New York City's

         19  water resources.

         20                 In response to the environmental toll

         21  on our rivers and lakes from industrialization and

         22  urbanization, Congress passed the Clean Water Act,

         23  which was originally known as the Federal Water

         24  Pollution Control Act Amendment in 1972, to set

         25  water quality standards for all contaminants and
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          2  surface waters with the goal of restoring our

          3  valuable waterways so they could once again be

          4  fishable and swimmable.

          5                 The Act made it unlawful for any

          6  person to discharge any pollutant from a point

          7  source into navigable waters unless a permit was

          8  obtained under its provisions.  Section 402 of the

          9  Clean Water Act establishes the National Pollutant

         10  Elimination System SPEDIS Permit Program.  It sets

         11  nationwide permit requirements for discharging

         12  pollutants into the waters of the U.S.

         13                 Included in the permit program is the

         14  City's fourteen waste water treatment plants, which

         15  are tracked for compliance by the U.S. EPA.  EPA's

         16  significant noncompliance system is a tool to

         17  identify and track the most severe and chronic

         18  violations of permit limits and reporting

         19  requirements.  Over the last few years, NYPIRG has

         20  reported on the number of facilities and significant

         21  noncompliance with their SPEDIS permits in New York

         22  State, and among the offenders is the Jamaica Water

         23  Pollution Control Plant, which has been out of

         24  compliance for all of the last five quarters, and

         25  the New Town Creek Waste Water Treatment Plant.
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          2                 Also of great concern to NYPIRG is

          3  what was mentioned earlier today about the CSOs, the

          4  combined sewer overflows. During storm surges, waste

          5  water that's untreated will simply go into our

          6  waterways.  Given the stress on our system already,

          7  NYPIRG does not support the passage of Intro 381 or

          8  407 because we believe that the waste water

          9  treatment plants will not be able to handle the

         10  increased flow.  These plants currently process more

         11  than 1.3 billion gallons of waste water daily to

         12  remove most of the pollutants from used water before

         13  it's discharged into local waterways.  This

         14  treatment is necessary to protect our beaches and

         15  waterways for swimming, fishing, and other

         16  recreational activities, as well as protect the

         17  aquatic habitat for fish and wildlife.

         18                 One of the significant consequences

         19  of improperly treating waste water is the increase

         20  in nitrogen discharges, which has been discussed

         21  today.  Excess nitrogen feeds huge algae blooms,

         22  which decompose the oxygen in the water and

         23  suffocates marine life. It literally chokes the life

         24  out of water bodies.  New York City, we believe,

         25  should be a leader in protecting its waterways.  As
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          2  we hear today some of the comments about this

          3  legislation as a way to solve many of the City's

          4  problems, and the City needs to act positively on

          5  behalf of the public's concern, I want to leave you

          6  with this image in particular.  Not just with the

          7  choking of the waterways, but also with the CSOs.

          8  The hard reality is that when those storm surges

          9  come, that extra capacity that's put on the system

         10  from the food storage that will go into the system,

         11  will result not only in food that's untreated being

         12  sent into Jamaica Bay and into the Hudson and Long

         13  Island Sound, that means also that raw sewage will

         14  go straight into these water bodies without the

         15  benefit of any treatment.  That is the harsh reality

         16  of New York City's water infrastructure.  You need

         17  to keep that in mind, of what impacts means for the

         18  City of New York.

         19                 When we talk about the benefits of

         20  New Yorkers, we're talking about all New Yorkers,

         21  and I would think that keeping our system and our

         22  water safe and sound and fishable and swimmable is a

         23  goal that means something for all New Yorkers.

         24  We've just in October of 2002 celebrated the

         25  thirtieth anniversary of the Clean Water Act, and

                                                            75

          1  SANITATION AND SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT

          2  we're obviously no where near that original goal of

          3  all of our water as being fishable and swimmable,

          4  but New York City can set a goal that is something

          5  that we can achieve, and that is not putting into

          6  place legislation that will endanger even more so

          7  our very sensitive water bodies.  While it's been

          8  reported that the increased carting fees have been

          9  the motivations for this legislation, we really

         10  believe that shifting responsibilities from

         11  businesses to consumers is not only unfair, as was

         12  proven with just the nitrogen increased loadings and

         13  with the CSOs, it's unsound. Thank you.

         14                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  Good afternoon Mr.

         15  Chairman and Members of the Committee.  My name is

         16  Eric Goldstein and I'm the Urban Program CoDirector

         17  with the Natural Resources Defense Council.  As you

         18  know, NRDC is a national nonprofit legal and

         19  scientific organization with 500,000 members

         20  nationwide, active on a whole host of issues

         21  including New York City's environmental health and

         22  protection of its natural resources.

         23                 Today the Committee is considering

         24  two pieces of legislation that would expand food

         25  waste disposers in residential buildings and
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          2  commercial establishments.  While NRDC recognizes

          3  the small financial benefits to the sanitation

          4  department for removing food waste from its disposal

          5  load, these tiny savings would be dwarfed by other

          6  problems.  From an economic standpoint as well as an

          7  environmental perspective, these bills make no

          8  sense.  The truth is that in serious budgetary times

          9  like those in which the City now finds itself, we

         10  can't afford either of these proposals.

         11                 Let's take Intro 381 first.  It

         12  mandates that all new kitchen sinks must include

         13  food waste disposers which would ground up food

         14  wastes of all kinds and send them into the City's

         15  sanitary or combined sewer systems.  This proposal

         16  poses numerous problems.  For one thing, the

         17  nitrogen content of the food waste means, as others

         18  have indicated, that these food waste disposers

         19  would add nitrogen loadings to our sewage plants,

         20  which are ill equipped to treat them.  It would also

         21  increase the amount of discharges into water bodies

         22  like the Long Island Sound and Jamaica Bay,

         23  decreasing oxygen levels in those bodies, and that's

         24  a primary source of water quality degradation.

         25  Significantly and different from cities like
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          2  Philadelphia, New York City is already under

          3  significant consent decrees to reduce the amount of

          4  the pollutants like nitrogen from going into its

          5  surround water bodies.

          6                 A second problem would be increasing

          7  of nitrogen loadings into New York's waterways

          8  during storm events.  This would occur since roughly

          9  three fourths of the City's sewer system consists of

         10  confined pipes that carry both storm water and

         11  household sewage and kitchen wastes in a single

         12  pipe.  Nutrient loadings that follow from these

         13  storm events would be exacerbated by adding food

         14  wastes into that load.  Decreases in dissolved

         15  oxygen would threaten aquatic life and the marine

         16  environment.  As the New York State Department of

         17  Environmental Conservation said at similar hearings

         18  on this issue back in 1997, "High levels of organic

         19  material from food waste would flow into our waters

         20  untreated during storms. And the impacts of these

         21  nitrogen from food wastes entering our sewer plants

         22  and bypassing those plants during wet weather would

         23  have serious economic impacts to the City.

         24                 As you know, and as Commissioner Ward

         25  had testified earlier, the City is under two Clean
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          2  Water Act consent decrees with New York State, one

          3  of which requires significant reductions in nitrogen

          4  discharges, and the second requires abatement of

          5  combined sewer overflows.  Commissioner Ward noted

          6  that these two consent decrees would cost the City

          7  water and sewer rate payers up to $3 billion over

          8  the next ten years, and that the City is now seeking

          9  through DEP to modify these consent decrees to

         10  achieve the objectives in a less costly manner.

         11                 It's safe to say that adding food

         12  wastes to our storm water loadings could adversely

         13  affect the City's emerging plan to save City rate

         14  payers hundreds of millions of capital dollars over

         15  the coming decade.  And this proposed legislation

         16  could also require increased expenditures from DEP's

         17  operating budget.  Food waste composters would add

         18  large amounts of oil, grease, and suspended solids

         19  to the City's sewer system.  Again, the 1997 DEP

         20  analysis projected a 20% increase of oil and grease

         21  per capita as food waste disposers are installed

         22  throughout the City.  For anyone who's familiar with

         23  problems from their constituents with backups in

         24  sewage system, this is a real problem.            This

         25  additional material would add to already existing
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          2  difficulties with sewage plant maintenance, and

          3  could boost operating expenses for sewer plants and

          4  storm sewers.  That's why DEP concluded back in

          5  1997, "There is a great potential for liability

          6  claims against the City, more liability claims

          7  against the City, if it does not act in a timely

          8  manner to undertake sewer cleaning to address severe

          9  backup complaints and grease cleaning", the kinds of

         10  problems that this proposal would accelerate.

         11                 The City in 1997 estimated that the

         12  Department of Sanitation could save about $4 million

         13  a year in reduced solid waste exports if by 2035

         14  food waste disposers are installed in 38% of the

         15  City's households.  But even if the savings were

         16  double or even triple that amount, such benefits

         17  would be dwarfed by the added maintenance costs and

         18  potential additional expenditures on nitrogen

         19  removal and CSO abatement.  This is the first time I

         20  can recall business groups coming to the City

         21  Council in 20 years calling for government mandates

         22  that would force consumers to spend more money.

         23                 The second legislative proposal,

         24  Intro 407, would for the first time enable

         25  restaurants, supermarkets, and certain other
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          2  businesses to install food waste disposers.  This

          3  too, is a nutty idea.  It would transfer the

          4  responsibility for food waste handling from

          5  commercial establishments to City water and sewer

          6  rate payers.  It could lead to significant localized

          7  problems with grease, clogged plumbing, and sewage

          8  backup.  And it would add to DEP's operating and

          9  maintenance burdens.

         10                 It's hard to see a single benefit

         11  from this legislative proposal to the people of the

         12  City of New York.  This is a special industry

         13  pleading that would shift the costs from the private

         14  sector to water and sewer rate payers.  There would

         15  be more clogged pipes and sewage backups, higher

         16  sewage maintenance costs and more pollution of our

         17  beaches, rivers, and bays.  And if the City is going

         18  to dramatically change policy as some have suggested

         19  here today and pick up the costs of commercial waste

         20  disposal, today is not the day to do it.

         21                 We don't even see a crying demand for

         22  either of these proposals from the public, other

         23  than from representatives of the plumbing and

         24  restaurant industries.  Indeed, under existing law,

         25  residents are already able to install food waste
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          2  disposers if they so choose.  Where's the need for a

          3  mandate for such devices?

          4                 Moreover, the long term solution to

          5  food waste disposal lies in expanding composting

          6  opportunities for these materials.  You can say a

          7  lot about this proposal, but please don't call it

          8  prorecycling.  Of course, in New York City, we know

          9  that the journey to food waste composting will take

         10  some time.  But until we get there, the current

         11  disposal system in which food waste is part of the

         12  municipal trash stream will suffice.

         13                 For all these reasons, a wide range

         14  of agencies and organizations have come together to

         15  oppose the proposed legislation.  For example, the

         16  New York City Department of Environmental

         17  Conservation, the other organizations that regulate

         18  the waters around New York City such as the New York

         19  State Department of Environmental Protection, the

         20  Interstate Sanitation Commission and environmental

         21  groups like those that have testified here today,

         22  along with River Keeper and Environmental Defense.

         23                 Of course, should the Council decide

         24  to advance this legislation despite all of this

         25  opposition, NRDC believes that it would be required
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          2  to complete a full environmental impact statement,

          3  consistent with State and City environmental review

          4  statutes.  If you really want to know what's going

          5  on in other cities that have employed this

          6  technology, you need to do a full environmental

          7  impact statement review.

          8                 In sum, NRDC believes that the

          9  proposed legislation represents an expensive

         10  solution to a nonexistent problem.  We urge this

         11  Committee to reject the proposed Intros 381 and 407,

         12  and we thank you for your attention and for your

         13  good work and the good work of this Committee,

         14  particularly on land filling and recycling. Thank

         15  you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you,

         17  Eric.  Tim?

         18                 MR. LOGAN:  Hi.  Timothy Logan.  I'm

         19  the Urban Infrastructure Coordinator for the New

         20  York City Environmental Justice Alliance as well as

         21  the Chair of the New York City Waste Prevention

         22  Coalition, as you added, the Technical Advisor for

         23  the Organization of Waterfront Neighborhoods.

         24                 Food waste disposers.  These are

         25  waste generators not eliminators, let's make that
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          2  clear.  There's a nifty little gadget that first you

          3  take clean, organic, suitable for production of

          4  agriculturally appropriate compost, you add a

          5  relatively inexpensive electrical grinder to our

          6  kitchen sink.  Seems like a tiny little process but

          7  in fact you get an expense shift in payments for

          8  handling food waste, either from Disney to DEP, or

          9  from industrial concerns to the City's coffers.  It

         10  gives an opportunity to enrich plumbers at the same

         11  time.  So you can see why they were here in full

         12  support.

         13                 Let us dissect the problem.  Sewage

         14  treatment plants are not designed to separate wastes

         15  and produce fertilizer. They're designed to remove

         16  pollutants from waste water.  Many of these

         17  pollutants concentrate and result in sludges.  As

         18  defined by the Harper Collins Dictionary of

         19  Environmental Science, for sludge, I quote,

         20   "Viscous, semi- solid mixture of bacteria and virus

         21  laden organic matter; toxic metals, synthetic,

         22  organic chemicals and settled solids removed from

         23  domestic and industrial waste water at sewage

         24  treatment plants."  That's what you're creating.

         25                 We have an opportunity to be creating
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          2  compost that can be useful as a commodity that can

          3  be sold and provides jobs, or we can provide this

          4  mixture.  New York City DEP currently operates

          5  fourteen of these treatment plants, at least eleven

          6  of them can be characterized as operating in

          7  communities of low income and communities of color,

          8  including communities such as Councilman Jackson's,

          9  Councilman Yassky's, and Councilman Serrano's.  And

         10  I believe Councilman Lanza who was here earlier and

         11   --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  What about

         13  mine?  Don't forget mine.

         14                 MR. LOGAN:  I didn't forget, it's

         15  right here, Port Richmond.  That being said, I

         16  imagine that your constituencies in those areas

         17  would not be particularly interested in bringing yet

         18  more to their area.  Nitrogen discharges in New York

         19  Harbor have been identified as a significant cause

         20  of hypoxia.  In the Western Long Island Sound and

         21  Jamaica Bay these conditions can create hypoxic

         22  events, especially during the summer months.

         23  They're under a court order to deal with this issue.

         24    I think numerous people including DEP have talked

         25  about this previously.  The nitrogen control
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          2  project's implementation at all fourteen facilities

          3  already requiring expansions at a number of these

          4  facilities, including in my colleague Cathleen

          5  Breen's own community, as well as up in Hunts Point.

          6                 As an example, adjacent to the Hunts

          7  Point Waste Water Treatment Facility, there were

          8  plans by the community for a 13 acre park.  This is

          9  an area that is extremely underserved in terms of

         10  open space.  They are now likely to get a five acre

         11  park, because the other eight acres are going to DEP

         12  for this expansion. So here's an area that's already

         13  overburdened and they're getting more burdened.  If

         14  we pass these laws, maybe they'll wipe out the other

         15  five acres of park land.  Is that fair?  I don't

         16  think so.

         17                 Upon completion of processing of up

         18  to 70% of the City's sludge is then pelletized

         19  through a process which releases harmful emissions

         20  into air at a plant known NYAFCO [phonetic: Tape 1,

         21  side 3, 90].  Also in the South Bronx, in Councilman

         22  Serrano's district, this has been the subject of

         23  numerous hearings at the state level as well as a

         24  variety of testimonies throughout the country where

         25  biosolids as the industry likes to call them are
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          2  being spread or polluting additional low income

          3  communities of color outside New York City.

          4                 Waste water treatment plants utilize

          5  vast amount of electricity for their operation.  New

          6  York City already has concerns for electrical supply

          7  without further taxing this system. We've seen in

          8  recent history that any additional power plants that

          9  are being built are once again being proposed for

         10  the same neighborhoods that are burdened with these

         11  waste water treatment plants as well as waste

         12  transfer stations.  Now we have power plants coming.

         13    So if we expand waste water treatment plants, we

         14  need more power plants to run them.

         15                 Basic waste prevention principles

         16  which our co-chair of the crab [phonetic: Tape 1,

         17  side 3, 102] Should be well aware dictate that waste

         18  should be separated as much as possible to allow for

         19  increased diversion rates when it can be kept

         20  separated from other streams.  That's the idea of

         21  composting.  That's what we're looking for.  That

         22  should be the idea that the City is addressing.

         23                 Our concerns need to be considered.

         24  Given DEP's estimates of $520 million in capital

         25  costs, I think we realistically have opportunities
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          2  to consider the potential to address these issues,

          3  processing both residential and commercial organics

          4  in a different manner.  And they can be done far

          5  cheaper. So we don't have to go this way because the

          6  plumbing industry has presented it to you.  We can

          7  still address the issues that the restaurants owners

          8  and grocers have brought to you about their space

          9  needs.  We just move the waste through composting

         10  facilities instead of the waste water treatment

         11  plants.

         12                 I think the final issue I wanted to

         13  mention is one of the grocer's up here talked about

         14  the need for these, but they failed to address

         15  composting opportunities or redemption center

         16  opportunities that the bottle bill would also offer.

         17    So these are alternatives that are not being

         18  considered by the grocers and restaurant industry

         19  that should be considered as a more sustainable

         20  development opportunity as we move toward zero

         21  waste.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  Thank you very

         23  much, Mr. Logan.  And we thank all three of you.

         24  The one thing I would say, though, is I don't think

         25  that the only issue that we seek to address here is
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          2  the cost to the Department of Sanitation because it

          3  is without question that the contamination from

          4  putrescible waste to the garbage stream makes

          5  recycling much more difficult.  It's a quality of

          6  life issue that transcends just those points.

          7  However, we have also heard -- your comments are

          8  similar to those made by Council Member Gennaro and

          9  Commissioner Ward, and we thank you for bringing

         10  those to us.

         11                 Just one question I have and maybe

         12  even Council Member Gennaro can help you answer this

         13  is, a study was done in 1997 to look at the impact

         14  of food waste disposers in the residential area.

         15  What would you think of a study in the commercial

         16  area?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Question for

         18  me?  Eric, you want to take a shot at that?

         19                 MR. GOLDSTEIN:  All I can say is the

         20  conclusion of that study was that they did not spend

         21  enough time studying it to make any definitive

         22  determinations and DEP said that itself back in

         23  1997.  The threat in the commercial sector, although

         24  studies always make sense at some level, is that

         25  because as you even heard today as much as 70% of a
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          2  restaurant's waste might end up down the drain, that

          3  you could create severe localized problems with

          4  grease.

          5                 Already the City DEP is out enforcing

          6  thousands of violations a year for grease retention

          7  and problems with grease in the sewer system.  This,

          8  to me, seems to only exacerbate that problem.  If

          9  you want to take a restaurant or two and do a test

         10  of it fine, go ahead and try that, but why don't you

         11  ask the experts who are responsible for enforcing

         12  existing laws to make sure that the sewage system is

         13  flowing adequately and that grease and food wastes

         14  are not clogging the system.  My understanding is

         15  that there are already significant problems in that

         16  area, why add to them?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  And

         18  certainly I would like to have further talks with

         19  DEP who is certainly studying this issue right now.

         20  They're very much concerned about it.  And I just

         21  want to respond to your comments, Mr. Chairman,

         22  about -- I don't necessarily wish to be associated

         23  with all the testimony that was just delivered from

         24  this panel.

         25                 I would say that I have a lot of
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          2  concerns about this legislation, and my concerns are

          3  the same concerns that Commissioner Ward has.  I

          4  have tremendous respect for all the individuals in

          5  this room on both sides of this issue, and I value

          6  their trust and friendship and all that they seek to

          7  bring. Everyone's got something here that they want

          8  to advance.  Everybody in this room wants us to do

          9  good, and so I'm confident of that. It's just

         10  whether the good that some people want to do, what's

         11  it going to do.  It's a question of balance.

         12                 At the end of this hearing I just

         13  want to go on the record that I share the same

         14  concerns as Commissioner Ward.  I want to continue

         15  my discussions with people on both sides of this

         16  issue that I can become even more familiar than I am

         17  with all perspectives and all nuances as we proceed.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON McMAHON:  I certainly

         19  didn't mean to put a certain label on anything.  I

         20  just meant what you would think of that type of

         21  study.  I know that we're all happy to be associated

         22  with each other because no matter where we stand on

         23  an issue we're one big happy family in the City of

         24  New York trying to provide for a good environmental

         25  future for future generations, as well as making
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          2  sure that working men and women have a place to work

          3  and that entrepreneurs have the ability to be

          4  successful in entrepreneurship, and that politicians

          5  are able to continue in successful political

          6  careers.

          7                 Having said that, and having the

          8  pleasure of being visited by two Council Members who

          9  are not part of this Committee I know they're coming

         10  for the next hearing, but we're glad to have them at

         11  our hearings, Council Members Espada from the Bronx,

         12  and our good friend Jean Sanders, we welcome you

         13  both.  Having said that, we hereby conclude this

         14  hearing.  Thank you all very much for attending.

         15                 (Hearing concluded at 1:15 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, SYLVIE van HOEK, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 15th day of April 2003.
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          9            I, SYLVIE van HOEK, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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